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IBF Q&A

1. What is the timetable for this round of the IBF?
The deadline for applications is midnight on Monday 7 July 2025. Applications will be scored by external assessors for technical and independent oversight and internally to assess the strategic and economic case. Following this, an expert review panel, consisting of individuals with a range of relevant experience in the space sector, large scale funding calls and operating internationally, will discuss the scores and advise on the projects to take forward. We anticipate the assessment to take place in July-August, with successful applicants notified in mid-late August.


2. [bookmark: _Toc113959933]Can I resubmit a proposal that was rejected in a previous call?
Yes, you may re-submit your proposal which will then go through the independent evaluation process when being considered for funding.  We recommend that any previous feedback is taken into consideration. For the avoidance of doubt, this includes projects that previously received IBF phase 1 funding but were unsuccessful in the phase 2 downselection competition. 

3. Do the match funding funds have to be immediately available when applying for funding?
Yes, the PV (private venture) funding must have been agreed and secured at the time of applying for the grant so that the project can commence as soon as the grant agreement has been completed. Matched funding should also be trackable across the duration of the grant. 

4. Can a non-UK based organisation lead an application and therefore receive funding?
The UK must lead any consortia put forward to ensure compliance with funding regulations, but funding can be distributed to international partners and subcontractors. Funding for international partners is capped at 30% of the overall grant value and funding for subcontractors is capped at 50% of the overall grant value.

5. Can UKSA provide advice about any type of collaboration or partnership that the Agency is promoting?
There is no restriction on the types of organisations that can partner. The only requirement is that one or more of the partners must be based internationally, and that proposals involving partners from Russia and Belarus are ineligible.

6. What format will the grant agreement take for any funded proposals, and can I adapt this to suit my proposal? 
We have provided a copy of our standard grant funding agreement. This is the document that will be used as the formal mechanism for any successful bidders to receive grant funding. Applicants are required to accept the main terms of this grant funding agreement when submitting your application. 

Applicants requesting changes to the agreement are required to submit a marked-up copy of the published grant funding agreement setting out the proposed variations, along with a justification for any amendment to the standard grant funding agreement terms. Please be aware that UKSA will only consider variations which are requested where the Applicant would be in breach of legal requirements or statutory regulations by complying with the clause, or series of clauses.

7. Should we explicitly state the overhead rate attached to salary costs, or would you prefer it to be amalgamated into a combined salary/overhead cost for each staff position?
The finance template includes notes on what information is required.  

8. Do labour costs relate only to staff on a PAYE payroll or would staff employed on short/long-term fixed contracts be eligible?
Costs should be applied for any staff that will be part of the project team/work regardless of employment status within the organisation. However, any costs for project work done by sub-contractors must be declared as a separate cost to the project. Sub-contractors cannot be partners to the project and justification in the proposal would need to be clearly stated as to the requirement for use of sub-contractors.

9. Are referees required to be within the UK? 
Referees do not have to be UK specific but must be from recognised international organisations and/or from other known space institutions.

10. Does the organisational background information apply only to the lead organisation?
No. All proposals must include organisational background information for all those involved, therefore including those put forward in collaboration.

11. Is there a minimum or maximum number of partners that can be in a project consortium?
No – we have set no requirements around the maximum number of partners, as long as they comply with the following guidelines: 
· A minimum of 20% of the grant funding must be claimed by the lead organisation 
· International partner costs should be capped at 30% of the total project cost

12. Do I have to partner with an international space agency to be eligible for funding?
IBF funding requires that the UK lead for the project include international partners as part of their consortium. The call does not specify whether international partners should be supported financially by an International Space Agency or a foreign government body.

13. Is there a difference between a partner and a sub-contractor?
Yes. If you are collaborating with another organisation or company, then they are your project partner and will be included in your proposal as subject to PV (private venture) contribution.

If you wish to sub-contract some work, then that company cannot be considered as a project partner as payment to them will be made from the award and they will therefore be included in the costs of the project.

14. Would sub-contractors have any IP publication rights?
If you sub-contract work this may not affect the IP publication rights of your company, but this is for the lead organisation to confirm.  

15.  Can we apply with only subcontractors as our proposed international partner?
Yes. For the purposes of the application, an international organisation can be classed as your international partner if they are a sub-contractor.

16. Does the maximum grant award offered include the PV (private venture) contribution?
The maximum grant is the award value UKSA will give to a successful proposal.  However, to industrial organisations (e.g., SME/LE) and FEC to not-for-profit organisations/academia. Therefore, your equivalent PV contribution must match that criterion.

17. Is an independent audit required of the total cost of the project?
Confirmation is required that the Grant Recipient has expended the sums in respect of the period in which milestone payments have been claimed. For this purpose, a report must be completed and sent to the Grant Funder within 3 months of the end of the grant or annually, whichever is shorter. As per the terms of the Grant Funding Agreement, it is not possible to claim the cost of this report. 

18. Can we apply to multiple UKSA funding calls with the same application?
Applicants can choose to do this but should note that each funding call has its own distinct objectives and scoring criteria will vary, so proposals that include the same content across multiple funding calls are unlikely to score highly. As outlined in the assessment criteria, the strongest proposals applying to IBF will demonstrate strong relevance to the objectives of international partners, which is distinct to this funding call.

19. Can we apply multiple times to the IBF as a participant or lead in different IBF consortia?
Applications should be restricted to two per organisation (lead) and unrestricted as partners. 

20. What are the match funding requirements for this call? 
This call is subject to the Subsidy Control Act 2022, and match funding requirements vary according to the size and type of lead organisation, as well as any activity being undertaken.  Match funding requirements are set out in section 9 of the call guidance. For any clarifications,  please email ggms_ibf@cabinetoffice.gov.uk.

21. Do we need to assess match funding requirements for our international partners?
Yes. As set out in the call guidance, match funding must be accurately provided by each member of the consortium, including international partners.  Applications where the updated subsidy control guidance is not complied with will not be considered for funding. 

22. Can we use different match funding thresholds? 
No. These thresholds are set out in the Subsidy Control Act 2022 and UKSA has no authority to deviate from them.

23. Should we provide Letters of Support?
[bookmark: _ANNEX_3:_Proposals]If they are available, applications can also include letters of support. 
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